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O'neill, Christopher (DEC)

From: Beverly Commerford <beverly.commerford@sterlingenvironmental.com>
Sent: Wednesday, August 13, 2014 11:16 AM
To: O'neill, Christopher (DEC)
Cc: Quinn, James A (DEC); Ripstein, Deanna (HEALTH); Ostrov, Rich (DEC); Freeman, Nathan 

T (HEALTH); RLeistensnider@nixonpeabody.com; jsmith@troybelting.com; David 
Barcomb (dbarcomb@troybelting.com); Mark Millspaugh; Rod Aldrich; Mark Williams

Subject: RE: C401067 Troy Belting & Supply Company - Approval of NYSDEC/NYSDOH 
Comments on Remedial Investigation Work Plan (STERLING File #2011-31)

Attachments: Final Approved RI Work Plan_revJune2014.pdf

Attached is the final approved Remedial Investigation Work Plan.  Hard copies will also be provided to NYSDEC (Chris 
O'Neill and James Quinn) and NYSDOH (Nathan Freeman and Deanna Ripstein) unless otherwise advised.  In addition, a 
copy will be submitted to the document repository.   
 
Thank you! 
Beverly 
 
Beverly A. Commerford 
Office Manager 
Sterling Environmental Engineering, P.C. 
24 Wade Road 
Latham, New York  12110 
Telephone: (518) 456‐4900 
Fax: (518) 456‐3532 
beverly.commerford@sterlingenvironmental.com 
www.sterlingenvironmental.com 
 
NOTICE: This e‐mail and any attachment contain confidential information that may be legally privileged. If you are not 
the intended recipient, you must not review, retransmit, print, copy, use or disseminate this email or the information 
contained therein. If you have received this email in error, please immediately notify us by return email and delete the 
message. If this email contains a forwarded email or is a reply to a prior email, the contents may not have been 
produced by the sender and therefore we are not responsible for its contents. 
 
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: O'neill, Christopher (DEC) [mailto:christopher.oneill@dec.ny.gov]  
Sent: August 13, 2014 10:43 AM 
To: Beverly Commerford 
Cc: Quinn, James A (DEC); Ripstein, Deanna (HEALTH); Ostrov, Rich (DEC); Freeman, Nathan T (HEALTH); 
RLeistensnider@nixonpeabody.com; jsmith@troybelting.com; David Barcomb (dbarcomb@troybelting.com); Mark 
Millspaugh; Rod Aldrich; Mark Williams 
Subject: RE: C401067 Troy Belting & Supply Company ‐ Approval of NYSDEC/NYSDOH Comments on Remedial 
Investigation Work Plan (STERLING File #2011‐31) 
 
Thank you for providing us with the final text revisions for the Remedial Investigation Work Plan (RIWP), as submitted 
via email on August 7, 2014.  
The 8/7/2014 Revised Version of the RIWP is acceptable and approved. 
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Please finalize the hard copies and electronic versions full document of the RIWP for submittal to NYSDEC and NYSDOH, 
and the document repository. 
In accordance with my telephone conversation with Mark Williams (Sterling Environmental), Troy Belting and Sterling 
should now move forward with implementing the RIWP. 
 
A formal approval letter will be issued in the very near future to memorialize this email. 
 
I can be reached at 518‐357‐2394 if there are any questions. 
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Beverly Commerford [mailto:beverly.commerford@sterlingenvironmental.com]  
Sent: Thursday, August 07, 2014 11:33 AM 
To: O'neill, Christopher (DEC) 
Cc: Quinn, James A (DEC); Ripstein, Deanna (HEALTH); Ostrov, Rich (DEC); Freeman, Nathan T (HEALTH); 
RLeistensnider@nixonpeabody.com; jsmith@troybelting.com; David Barcomb (dbarcomb@troybelting.com); Mark 
Millspaugh; Rod Aldrich; Mark Williams 
Subject: Troy Belting & Supply Company ‐ Approval of NYSDEC/NYSDOH Comments on Remedial Investigation Work Plan 
(STERLING File #2011‐31) 
 
Dear Mr. O'Neill, 
 
Please find the attached in response to NYSDEC/NYSDOH comments received by 7/25/14 letter on the Remedial 
Investigation Work Plan.  Hard copy will follow via First Class Mail. 
 
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
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24 Wade Road  ♦  Latham, New York  12110
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MAP REFERENCES:

1. BASE MAP (INCLUDING PROPERTY LINE BOUNDARY) IS FROM DRAWING ENTITLED "MONITORING WELL SURVEY,"

BY CORNERSTONE SURVEYING & MAPPING, DECEMBER 17, 2012.

2. AERIAL IMAGE FROM NEW YORK STATEWIDE DIGITAL ORTHOIMAGERY PROGRAM, PHOTOGRAPHY CIRCA 2011.

OA = OUTDOOR AIR

IA = INDOOR AIR

SV = SUB-SLAB SOIL VAPOR

APPROXIMATE PROPERTY LINE

24 Wade Road  ♦  Latham, New York  12110

LEGEND:





TABLE 1

Summary of Historical Analytical Results - Groundwater 

Troy Belting & Supply Company, 70 Cohoes Road, Colonie, New York

Date Sampled 5/4/2012 12/20/2012 5/4/2012 12/20/2012 5/4/2012 12/20/2012 12/20/2012 12/20/2012 5/4/2012 12/20/2012

Aluminum 100 --- µg/L 465 882 ND 388 ND 1,890 82,500 9,890 ND 3,230

Antimony 3 --- µg/L ND ND 12 ND ND ND ND 11.0 BN ND 14.8 BN

Arsenic 25 --- µg/L 7.6 ND 5.2 ND 6.3 ND 42.7 9.1 B ND ND

Barium 1,000 --- µg/L 889 1,050 5,460 7,130 732 322 6,690 1,680 5,570 971

Beryllium --- 3 µg/L ND ND ND ND ND ND 4.0 B 0.50 B ND ND

Cadmium 5 --- µg/L ND ND ND ND ND ND 1.7 B 1.7 B ND 1.3 B

Calcium --- --- µg/L 48,600 53,600 135,000 111,000 159,000 102,000 142,000 131,000 139,000 122,000

Chromium 50 --- µg/L ND 1.5 B ND 2.1 B ND 3.2 B 116 18.6 B ND 6.5 B

Cobalt --- --- µg/L ND ND ND ND ND 1.4 B 74.6 12.7 B ND 6.5 B

Copper 200 --- µg/L ND 5.3 B ND 6.8 B ND 7.7 B 201 67.8 ND 29.2 B

Iron 300** --- µg/L 13,100 12,000 128** 2,250 77.8** 3,510 167,000 19,800 58.2** 6,420

Lead 25 --- µg/L ND ND ND ND ND ND 121 31.8 ND 9.7 B

Magnesium --- 35,000 µg/L 12,600 14,400 42,800 32,900 43,700 29,500 78,700 57,200 43,600 52,100

Manganese 300** --- µg/L 1,710 1,810 1,270 841 1,090 747 5,090 3,540 1,300 3,560

Nickel 100 --- µg/L 1.2 1.5 B 2.7 5.0 B 1.2 3.6 B 169 31.0 B 2.3 15.4 B

Potassium --- --- µg/L 4,790 5,380 11,700 13,100 6,530 5,760 21,400 32,600 11,900 31,600

Selenium 10 --- µg/L ND ND ND ND ND ND 13.4 B ND ND 15.2 B

Sodium 20,000 --- µg/L 6,400 7,030 79,200 124,000 102,000 86,000 153,000 68,300 80,100 66,200

Thallium --- 0.5 µg/L 10.7 ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND

Vanadium --- --- µg/L ND 1.4 B ND ND ND 3.6 B 135 18.2 B ND 6.4 B

Zinc --- 2,000 µg/L 8.1 11.6 B 6.0 12.1 B 35.6 10.8 B 363 84.5 5.4 33.8 B

Mercury 0.7 --- µg/L ND ND ND ND ND ND 0.10 B ND ND ND

1,1,1-Trichloroethane 5 --- µg/L ND ND 2,800* 2,500 DJ ND ND 0.53 J 6,700 DJ 3,000* 7,400 DJ

1,1,2-Trichloroethane 1 --- µg/L ND ND 9.9 7.7 ND ND ND 8.1 ND 6.9

1,1-Dichloroethane 5 --- µg/L ND ND 4,300* 3,600 DJ ND ND 93 ND 4,700* ND

1,1-Dichloroethene 5 --- µg/L ND ND 1,300 ND ND ND 15 ND 1,000* ND

1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene 5 --- µg/L ND ND 0.82 ND ND ND ND 0.78 J ND 0.75 J

1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene 5 --- µg/L ND ND ND 0.64 J ND ND ND 1.2 J ND 1.2 J

1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene 5 --- µg/L ND ND 98 110 ND ND ND 91 140 110

1,2-Dichloroethane 0.6 --- µg/L ND ND 3.8 2.9 J ND ND ND 8.0 ND 7.2

1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene 5 --- µg/L ND ND 35 37 ND ND ND 26 ND 32

1,4-Dichlorobenzene 3 --- µg/L ND ND ND ND ND ND ND 0.52 J ND 0.54 J

4-Isopropyltoluene 5 --- µg/L ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND 7.4

4-Methyl-2-pentanone --- --- µg/L ND ND 14 17 ND ND ND 23 ND 22

Acetone --- 50 µg/L ND ND 130 120 ND ND ND 130 ND 150

Benzene 1 --- µg/L ND ND 8.4 6.2 ND ND ND 8.2 ND 8.4

Carbon disulfide --- --- µg/L ND ND 2.1 0.77 J ND ND ND 3.5 J ND 4.1 J

Chlorobenzene 5 --- µg/L ND ND ND ND ND ND ND 0.60 J ND 0.63 J

Chloroethane 5 --- µg/L ND ND 2.0 1.8 J ND ND ND ND ND 1.6 J

Chloroform 7 --- µg/L ND ND 5.1 3.6 J ND ND ND 3.5 J ND 3.3 J

cis-1,2-Dichloroethene 5 --- µg/L 0.76 0.79 J 28,000* 27,000 D 1.2 ND 8,300 D 63,000 D 33,000* 58,000 D

Ethylbenzene 5 --- µg/L ND ND 32 27 ND ND ND 48 ND 52

Isopropylbenzene 5 --- µg/L ND ND 7.5 7.4 ND ND ND 6.3 ND 7.5

m,p-Xylene 5 --- µg/L ND ND 76 67 ND ND ND 130 79 140

Methylene chloride 5 --- µg/L ND ND 520 1,200 DJ ND 0.60 J ND ND 380 ND

n-Butylbenzene 5 --- µg/L ND ND 11 8.2 ND ND ND 8.6 ND 11

n-Propylbenzene 5 --- µg/L ND ND 12 13 ND ND ND 11 ND 13

Naphthalene --- 10 µg/L ND ND 13 12 ND ND ND 20 7.8 25

o-Xylene 5 --- µg/L ND ND 44 39 ND ND ND 72 ND 80

sec-Butylbenzene 5 --- µg/L ND ND 5.4 6.5 ND ND ND 4.0 J ND 5.1

Tetrachloroethene 5 --- µg/L ND ND 3,200* 3,600 DJ 1.2 ND 3.3 J 5,100 DJ 4,200* 4,400 DJ

Toluene 5 --- µg/L ND ND 210 170 ND ND ND ND 210 ND

trans-1,2-Dichloroethene 5 --- µg/L ND ND 260 110 ND ND 34 ND 70 ND

Trichloroethene 5 --- µg/L ND 0.76 J 260,000* 210,000 D 39 ND 230 DJ 410,000 D 280,000* 390,000 D

Vinyl chloride 2 --- µg/L 1.5 1.9 J 290 ND ND ND 320 DJ 7,500 DJ 170 7,200 DJ

Xylene (Total) 5 --- µg/L ND ND 120 110 ND ND ND 200 79 220

4-Methylphenol --- --- µg/L ND ND ND 1.6 J ND ND ND 2.5 J ND 2.2 J

Bis(2-ethylhexyl)phthalate 5 --- µg/L ND 1.6 J 4.4 2.5 J 2.0 1.6 J 1.7 J 1.9 J 4.4 2.0 J

Butylbenzylphthalate --- 50 µg/L ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND 1.4 J

Di-n-butylphthalate 50 --- µg/L 1.1 4.3 J 2.0 4.4 J 1.3 4.1 J 4.0 J 4.0 J 1.8 4.4 J

Diethylphthalate --- 50 µg/L ND ND 16 31 ND ND ND 1.4 J 40 1.7 J

Dimethylphthalate --- 50 µg/L ND ND ND ND ND ND ND 10 ND 10 J

Naphthalene --- 10 µg/L ND ND 8.7 5.7 J ND ND ND 10 ND 10

Phenol 1 --- µg/L ND ND 13 12 ND ND ND 5.2 J 15 4.5 J

 Reg 1

 Reg 2

Bold

--- No value provided.

ND No detection.

D

J Detected below the reporting limit or estimated concentration for Tentatively Identified Compound (TIC).

B Compound was also detected in the associated Method Blank.

N

*

**

© 2014, Sterling Environmental Engineering, P.C      S:\Sterling\Projects\2011 Projects\Troy Belting and Supply Co - 2011-31\Lab Reports\2012-12 sample results\Groundwater\Trial 2 EDD - Water\Table 1_Revised June 2014

Groundwater standard for sum of iron and manganese is 500 µg/L.   

Results achieved through dilution.

Obtained from a secondary dilution analysis.

MW-4MW-1 MW-2 MW-3

Volatile and Semi-Volatile Organics analysis TIC where an analyte has passed the identification criteria, and is considered to be positively identified, 

Inorganics analysis indicates the matrix spike recovery falls outside the control limit.

DUP-1

Bold values indicate exceedances relative to Reg 1 and/or Reg 2.

MW-2 MW-3 DUP-1MW-5

NYSDEC TOGs 1.1.1: Ambient Water Quality Standards: GA Water Class for Standard Values; Eff. June 1998

NYSDEC TOGs 1.1.1: Ambient Water Quality Guidance Values: GA Water Class for Guidance Values; Eff. June 1998

Parameter Reg 1 Reg 2 Unit MW-1















OSR – 3

NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
INDOOR AIR QUALITY QUESTIONNAIRE AND BUILDING INVENTORY

CENTER FOR ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH

This form must be completed for each building involved in indoor air testing.

Preparer’s Name ____________________________________ Date/Time Prepared ______________

Preparer’s Affiliation ________________________________ Phone No.______________________

Purpose of Investigation______________________________________________________________

1. OCCUPANT:

Interviewed:   Y / N

Last Name: _________________________  First Name: _________________________

Address: _______________________________________________________________

County: _________________  

Home Phone: ____________________ Office Phone: ____________________

Number of Occupants/persons at this location _______  Age of Occupants ______________________

2. OWNER OR LANDLORD:  (Check if same as occupant ___ )

Interviewed:   Y / N

Last Name: _________________________First Name: ___________________________

Address: _______________________________________________________________

County: _________________  

Home Phone: ____________________  Office Phone: ____________________

3. BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS

Type of Building: (Circle appropriate response)  

Residential School Commercial/Multi-use
Industrial Church Other: _________________
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If the property is residential, type? (Circle appropriate response)

Ranch 2-Family 3-Family
Raised Ranch Split Level Colonial
Cape Cod Contemporary Mobile Home
Duplex Apartment House Townhouses/Condos
Modular Log Home Other:_______________

If multiple units, how many? ________

If the property is commercial, type?

Business Type(s) _____________________________________

Does it include residences (i.e., multi-use)?   Y / N If yes, how many? ______

Other characteristics: 

Number of floors______ Building age______

Is the building insulated? Y / N How air tight? Tight / Average / Not Tight

4. AIRFLOW

Use air current tubes or tracer smoke to evaluate airflow patterns and qualitatively describe:

Airflow between floors
_________________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________________

Airflow near source
_________________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________________

Outdoor air infiltration
_________________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________________

Infiltration into air ducts
_________________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________________
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5. BASEMENT AND CONSTRUCTION CHARACTERISTICS (Circle all that apply)

a. Above grade construction: wood frame concrete stone brick

b. Basement type: full crawlspace slab other ________

c. Basement floor: concrete dirt stone other ________

d. Basement floor: uncovered covered covered with _______________

e. Concrete floor: unsealed sealed sealed with ________________

f. Foundation walls: poured block stone other ________

g. Foundation walls: unsealed sealed sealed with ________________

h. The basement is: wet damp dry moldy

i. The basement is: finished unfinished partially finished

j. Sump present? Y / N

k. Water in sump? Y / N / not applicable

Basement/Lowest level depth below grade: ________(feet)

Identify potential soil vapor entry points and approximate size (e.g., cracks, utility ports, drains)

________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________

6. HEATING, VENTING and AIR CONDITIONING (Circle all that apply)

Type of heating system(s) used in this building: (circle all that apply – note primary)

Hot air circulation Heat pump Hot water baseboard
Space Heaters Stream radiation Radiant floor
Electric baseboard Wood stove Outdoor wood boiler Other ___________

The primary type of fuel used is:

Natural Gas Fuel Oil Kerosene
Electric Propane Solar
Wood Coal

Domestic hot water tank fueled by: ____________________________

Boiler/furnace located in: Basement Outdoors Main Floor Other___________

Air conditioning: Central Air Window units Open Windows None
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Are there air distribution ducts present? Y / N

Describe the supply and cold air return ductwork, and its condition where visible, including whether
there is a cold air return and the tightness of duct joints.  Indicate the locations on the floor plan
diagram.

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

7. OCCUPANCY

Is basement/lowest level occupied? Full-time Occasionally Seldom Almost Never

Level General Use of Each Floor  (e.g.,  family room, bedroom, laundry, workshop, storage)

Basement __________________________________________________________

1st Floor __________________________________________________________

2nd Floor __________________________________________________________

3rd Floor __________________________________________________________

4th Floor __________________________________________________________

8. FACTORS THAT MAY INFLUENCE INDOOR AIR QUALITY

a. Is there an attached garage? Y / N

b. Does the garage have a separate heating unit? Y / N / NA

c. Are petroleum-powered machines or vehicles Y / N / NA
stored in the garage (e.g., lawnmower, atv, car) Please specify__________________

d. Has the building ever had a fire? Y / N When?_________________

e. Is a kerosene or unvented gas space heater present? Y / N Where? ________________

f. Is there a workshop or hobby/craft area? Y / N Where & Type? ________________

g. Is there smoking in the building? Y / N How frequently? _______________

h. Have cleaning products been used recently? Y / N When & Type?  ________________

i. Have cosmetic products been used recently? Y / N When & Type? ________________
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j. Has painting/staining been done in the last 6 months? Y / N Where & When? _______________

k. Is there new carpet, drapes or other textiles? Y / N Where & When? _______________

l. Have air fresheners been used recently? Y / N When & Type? ________________

m. Is there a kitchen exhaust fan? Y / N If yes, where vented?____________

n. Is there a bathroom exhaust fan? Y / N If yes, where vented?____________

o. Is there a clothes dryer? Y / N If yes, is it vented outside? Y / N

p. Has there been a pesticide application? Y / N When & Type?_________________

Are there odors in the building? Y / N
      If yes, please describe: ______________________________________________________________

Do any of the building occupants use solvents at work? Y / N
(e.g., chemical manufacturing or laboratory, auto mechanic or auto body shop, painting,  fuel oil delivery,
boiler mechanic, pesticide application, cosmetologist

If yes, what types of solvents are used? ________________________________________________

If yes, are their clothes washed at work? Y / N

Do any of the building occupants regularly use or work at a dry-cleaning service? (Circle appropriate
response)

Yes, use dry-cleaning regularly (weekly) No
Yes, use dry-cleaning infrequently (monthly or less) Unknown
Yes, work at a dry-cleaning service

Is there a radon mitigation system for the building/structure?  Y / N Date of Installation: ____________
Is the system active or passive? Active/Passive

9. WATER AND SEWAGE

Water Supply: Public Water Drilled Well Driven Well Dug Well Other: _______

Sewage Disposal: Public Sewer Septic Tank Leach Field Dry Well Other: _______

10. RELOCATION INFORMATION (for oil spill residential emergency)

a. Provide reasons why relocation is recommended: _____________________________________

b. Residents choose to: remain in home  relocate to friends/family relocate to hotel/motel

c. Responsibility for costs associated with reimbursement explained? Y / N

d. Relocation package provided and explained to residents? Y / N
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11. FLOOR PLANS

Draw a plan view sketch of the first floor of the building.  Indicate air sampling locations, possible 
indoor air pollution sources and PID meter readings.  If the building does not have a basement, please 
note.

Basement: 

First Floor:  
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12. OUTDOOR PLOT

Draw a sketch of the area surrounding the building being sampled.  If applicable, provide information
on spill locations, potential air contamination sources (industries, gas stations, repair shops, landfills,
etc.), outdoor air sampling location(s) and PID meter readings.

Also indicate compass direction, wind direction and speed during sampling, the locations of the well
and septic system, if applicable, and a qualifying statement to help locate the site on a topographic map.
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13. PRODUCT INVENTORY FORM

Make & Model of field instrument used: ______________________________________ 

List specific products found in the building that have the potential to affect indoor air quality. 

Location Product Description Size
(units) Condition* Chemical Ingredients

Field
Instrument
Reading
(units)

Photo **

Y / N

* Describe the condition of the product containers as Unopened (UO), Used (U), or Deteriorated (D)
** Photographs of the front and back of product containers can replace the handwritten list of chemical
ingredients.  However, the photographs must be of good quality and ingredient labels must be legible.  
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